HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
February 10, 2011
1:41 p. m

1:41: 03 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Thomas called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:41 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Representative Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Representative Ma Costello
Representati ve M ke Doogan

Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative David Guttenberg
Representative Mark Neuman

Representative Tanm e WI son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Kyle Johansen, Bruce Tangenan, Deputy
Comm ssi oner, Departnment of Revenue; Lennie Dees, Master
Tax Auditor, Departnent of Revenue.

SUMVARY

ATransferable tax credit presentation--Lennie Dees, Master
Tax Auditor, Departnent of Revenue

1:41: 09 PM

Co- Chai r Thomas i ntroduced t he | egi sl ators and
presentati on.

Representative Gara introduced a constituent from his
district.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



BRUCE TANGEMAN, DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
introduced hinself. He explained that the inception of tax
credits offered in the state was 2006. The tax credit
systemis conpl ex and dynam c.

LENNI E DEES, MASTER TAX AUDH TOR, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
introduced the PowerPoint presentation "Production Tax
Credits (copy on file)."

1:44:18 PM

M. Dees discussed Slide 3: "Types of Production Tax
Credits,"”

Credits which my be taken against oil and gas
production taxes i ncl ude:
B Capital Expenditure Credits
B Alternative Tax Credits for G| and Gas
Expl orati on
B Net Operating Loss (“NOL”) Carry Forward
Credits
B Transitional Investnent Expenditure (“TIE")
Credit
B Additional Nontransferable Tax Credits
B Wl | Lease Expenditures Credit
B Cook Inlet Jack-up Rig Credit

Representative Quttenberg asked about industry standards
for the nmentioned credits. He asked if the credits were
conjured in Alaska. M. Dees responded that the capital
expenditure credits utilize the sane standards required by
the internal revenue code.

Representative Gara asked about credits that apply to the
North Slope. He asked how credits mght be conbined for a
field such as Prudhoe Bay.

M. Dees replied that for Prudhoe Bay, a currently
developing oil field, the nost applicable credits are the
capital expenditure credit, net operating loss credit, and
the additional nontransferable <credit. The alternative
credits for oil and gas exploration are available for a new
di scovery outside of an existing unit.

1:48: 33 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



Representative Gara pointed out that some of the credits
are observed as percentages and others as dollars. M. Dees
agreed. He noted that the capital expenditure credit is a
20 percent credit. The alternative tax credit for oil and
gas exploration is either a 30 or 40 percent credit
depending on the project. The net operating loss credit is
a 25 per cent credit. The transitional i nvest ment
expenditure credit is a credit based on a percentage of
capital expense occurring prior to the Petrol eum Production
Tax (PPT). The additional non-transferable tax credit is
strictly based on dollars. The small producer credit is a
$12 mllion credit for conpanies producing less than 50
t housand barrels of oil per day. He noted that the well
| ease expenditure credit is based on 40 percent of certain
types of well |ease expenditures and is applicable in areas
south of 68 degrees north latitude, which is considered the
North Slope. He added that the Cook Inlet jack-up rig
credit is based on a percentage of the first $25 mllion of
expenditures for the first three taxpayers using a jack up
rig in the Cook Inlet area.

Representative Gara discussed the various conbinations of
credits that mght provide even greater advantages for the
oi | conpani es.

1: 52: 27 PM

M. Dees discussed Slide 4: "Tinelines for Production Tax
Credits." He explained that the credits canme into existence
with PPT. He detailed the wvarious «credits: The net
operating loss credit is offered when a conpany suffers a
loss and their |ease expenditures exceed revenues. The
credits wunderwent changes wth ACES. The statute was
changed so only 50 percent of the tax liability could be
taken in the year earned. The well |ease expenditure credit
becanme effective July 1, 2010 for intangible drilling costs
and seismc activity wthin an existing unit in areas south
of the North Sl ope.

1: 55: 03 PM

M. Dees continued that the Transitional | nvest ment
Expenditure Credits (TIE) credits were effective January 1,
2008 and avail able to those conpanies or producers wthout
prior production. He nentioned the new area devel opnent
credit for $6 million came into existence at the inception
of the Alaskan Clear and Equitable Share (ACES). The snal

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



producer credit of $12 mllion cane into existence at the
inception of PPT. He finished with the Cook Inlet jack-up
rig credit enacted |ast year and effective July 1, 2010.

1:57:17 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough asked if the new area devel opnent
credit began with ACES or PPT. M. Dees replied PPT.

M. Dees addressed Slide 5: "Types of Production Tax
Credits,"”

Capital Expenditure Credits - (AS 43.55.023(a) (1))
20% of qualified capital expenditures (QCE)
QCE include drilling, construction of
facilities, new equi pnent, etc.

Same expenditures may also qualify for NOL
Carry Forward Credit

Sanme  expenditures do not qualify for
exploration credit

Must be spread over 2 years (except for
expenditures incurred south of 68 degrees
North latitude — effective July 1, 2010)

O Credits may be cashed or transferred

Capital Expenditure Credits- (AS 43.55.023(a) (1))
e 20 percent of qualified capital expenditures

e QCE include drilling, construction of facilities,
new equi pnent, etc.

e Sane expenditures do not qualify for exploration
credit

 Miust be spread over two years (except for
expenditures incurred south of 68 degrees North
| atitude- effective July 1, 2010)

 Credits may be cashed or transferred

2:00: 57 PM

M. Dees discussed Slide 6 "Types of Production Tax
Credits,"”

Expl oration Credits
O Two Main Types
B Capital Credit for Exploration Activity
43.55.023(a) (2) (20%

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



B Alternative Tax Credits for Gl and Gas
Expl orati on 43.55. 025 (30% 40%

2:01:58 PM

M. Dees discussed Slide 7: "Types of Production tax
Credits,"

Capital Credit for Exploration Activity 43.55.023(a)
(2)
O 20% of qualifying expenditures
O Qualifying expenditures related to geologic
and geophysi cal expl orati on, or in
connection with an exploration well
O Must be spread across 2 years (except for
expenditures incurred south of 68 degrees
North latitude — effective July 1, 2010)
O Sane expenditures may also qualify for NOL
Carry Forward Credits
O Credits may be cashed or transferred

M. Dees discussed Slide 8: "Types of Production tax
Credits,"

Expl oration Credits
O Two Main Types
B Capital Credit for Exploration Activity
under 43.55.023(a) (2) (20%
B Alternative Tax Credits for Ol and Gas
Expl orati on under 43.55.025
(30% 40%

M. Dees discussed Slide 9: "Types of Production tax
Credits,"”

Alternative Tax Credits for G| and Gas Exploration -

43.55. 025

O 30% - 40%  of qual ified expendi tures
depending on well location and proximty to
existing wells and unit boundari es

O Qualified expendi tures i ncl ude certain
expenses associ at ed Wi th seismc and
geophysi cal expl oration wor k, and
exploration well drilling

O Sane expenditures may also qualify for NOL
Carry Forward Credit

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



Sanme expenditures do not qualify for Capital
Expenditure Credit

To receive credit, taxpayer nust provide
certain well data to DNR

Expires 2016

Credits may be cashed or transferred

2: 04: 53 PM

Representative Gara asked about the various credits and the
existing wells. He asked if the alternative tax credit for
oil and gas exploration was applied for often. M. Dees
replied yes.

Representative Gara asked to know the |l|ocation of the
credit's use. M. Dees replied that nany areas in the North
Slope utilized the alternative tax credit. Representative
Gara asked if it was used in an area where devel opnent has
occurred. M. Tangenman offered to provide information to
the conmttee at a |ater date.

Represent ati ve Doogan asked why the credits were stackabl e.
M. Dees responded that the Alaska statutes allow the
stacking of the credits. He stated that exclusion by
statute is necessary to prevent the stacking of the
credits. He provided the exanple of the Cook Inlet jack-up
rig credit where those credits obtained in the section
cannot be used in AS 43.55.023.

M. Tangenan added that the goal of the stackable credits
was to provide further incentive to the oil conpani es.

Representative GQuttenberg asked about coordination and
comuni cation between DOR and the Departnment of Natural
Resources (DNR). M. Dees replied that the alternative tax
credit requires that an audit is perforned prior to issuing
the credit. An application received requires the sharing of
information with DNR as part of the process.

Vice-chair Fairclough asked if it was typical for credits
to be stacked on national and international Ilevels. M.
Dees replied that only Alaska offers this type of
production tax statute.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked if the purpose of the statute

was to provide incentive to the oil conpanies. M. Dees
stated that he was not able to comment.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



Vice-chair Fairclough pointed out that the particular
incentive was to inspire exploration and nust be used for
devel opnment past the 2008 cycl e.

2:11: 08 PM

M. Dees responded yes, the 30 to 40 percent credit
requires activity beyond July 1, 2008. An application for a
period prior to July 1, 2008 falls wunder the old PPT
statute granting 20 to 40 percent.

Vi ce-chair Fai rcl ough concluded that the legislature
intended that the tax credits incentivize a pipeline that
was i n decline.

Representative Costello asked if any tax credits apply
specifically to fields that are not wunitized. M. Dees
responded that the credits apply to |leases and properties
within the state. Sone cases deal wth |eases and others
wth wunits. These particular credits inply that they
include only activity that is outside of the unit.

Representative Costello asked how often conpanies transfer
tax credits. M. Dees replied occasionally. He clained that
activity waned in recent years. He opined that the change
may have inspired last year's law elinmnating the 24 nonth
reinvestnment requirenment. Representative Costello asked the
reason for the waning. M. Dees believed that reinvestnent
m ght be the reason for the waning.

M. Dees commented that under both PPT and the original
ACES a person with a transferable tax credit certificate
who wished to sell to the state nust show that they spent
an additional percentage of qualified capital expenditures
in order for the state to cash the credit out. The 24 nonth
rei nvest ment requi r enent became a problem for sone
compani es.

2:15:54 PM

Representative Neuman wondered if specific well data was
sealed from ot her conpanies. M. Dees replied that the well
data is available after a period of tine.

Co-Chair Thomas presented a scenario to explain the
di scl osure of well data.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



2:17: 25 PM

Representative Gara recalled that in 2007, |legislators were
told that the remaining oil on the North Slope was nore
difficult and expensive to locate and that the stacking of
credits conbined with deductions were necessary to provide
generous investnent incentives to spur developnent. He
commented that oil production has declined since 1990.

M. Tangeman offered to speak to the nunber of credits
applied for, but he believed that the producers nust speak
to the effectiveness of the process.

2:19:09 PM

M. Dees discussed Slide 10: "Types of Production tax
Credits,"

Alternative Tax Credits for G|l and Gas Exploration -

43.55. 025

O 30% - 40%  of qual ified expendi tures
depending on well location and proximty to
existing wells and unit boundari es

O Qualified expendi tures i ncl ude certain
expenses associ at ed W th seismc and
geophysi cal expl oration wor K, and
exploration well drilling

O Sane expenditures may also qualify for NOL
Carry Forward Credit

O Sane expenditures do not qualify for Capita
Expenditure Credit

O To receive credit, taxpayer nust provide
certain well data to DNR

O Expires 2016

O Credits may be cashed or transferred

M. Dees addressed Slide 11: "Types of Production tax
Credits,"

Transi tional | nvest nent Expenditure (TIE) Credits
43.55.023(i)
O Credit equals 20% of qualifying capita
expendi t ures:
® incurred between Mrch 31, 2001 and
April 1, 2006, and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



B not exceeding 10% of the capita
expenditures incurred between March 31,
2006 and January 1, 2008.

O Revised under Aces to cover only producer or
explorer not having production prior to
January 1, 2008

O Cedits are not transferable and nay not be
carried forward beyond 2013

O Sane capital expenditures may not qualify
for exploration credit under 43.55.025

2:21: 34 PM

Representative CQuttenberg asked about the point "not
exceeding 10 percent of the capital expenditures incurred
bet ween March 31, 2006 and January 1, 2008." He wondered if
the state conpleted the 2006 North Sl ope production audits.
M. Dees replied that the departnment is "substantially
conplete” with the 2006 audit.

Representative GQuttenberg clarified that the state does not
have all of the necessary information to aid in future
policy. M. Dees concurred.

M. Dees discussed Slide 12: "Types of Production tax
Credits,"

Addi tional Nontransferable Tax Credit- 43.55.024(a)

O Referred to as “New Area Devel opnent” credit

O Up to $6 mllion

O Available for conpanies producing from
| eases or properties outside of Cook Inlet
and North Sl ope

O Credit can only be applied against tax
liability

O Expires 2016 or 9 years after first
commercial oil or gas production if before
May 1, 2016

O Credits may not be cashed or transferred or
carried forward

2:24: 07 PM

M. Dees discussed Slide 13: "Types of Production tax
Credits,"

Smal | Producer Credit - 43.55.024(c)

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



Up to $12 nillion, depending upon |evel of
pr oducti on

Avai |l abl e for conpanies producing |ess than
100, 000 bbl/day of oil BTU equi val ent
Production not restricted by region

Credit can only be applied against tax
liability

Expires 2016 or 9 years after first
commercial oil or gas production if before
May 1, 2016

O Credits may not be cashed or transferred or
carried forward

Representative GQuttenberg asked why the small producer
credit is not transferred, carried forward, or cashed.

M. Dees replied that the credit is not based on a |evel of
capital expenditure. He noted that the credit is based on
production of I|ess than 50 thousand barrels per day. He
added that AS 43.55.024(a) is based on production outside
of Cook Inlet or the North Sl ope.

Representative Gara asked if the credit applies to fields
already in production prior to the inception of the credit.
M. Dees replied yes, although expiration occurs after nine
years.

2:27:23 PM

Representative Gara pointed out that only two fields
produce nore than 100 thousand barrels per day on the North
Slope. He noted that the credit applies to virtually every
field except for Kuparuk and Prudhoe Bay. He opposed
incentives that provide noney for production already in
place. M. Dees concurred. He added that the credit has
little inpact on the state budget because a conpany can
only apply for the amobunt of their tax liability.

2:29:16 PM

M. Dees noted Slide 14: "Types of Production tax Credits,"”

Wel | Lease Expenditure Credit - 43.55.023(1)

O 40% of well |ease expenditures incurred in
the state south of 68 degrees north latitude
O Must be intangible drilling ~costs or

geol ogi cal / geophysical exploration

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



O Credit may be applied against tax liability,
or certificated and cashed or transferred to
anot her taxpayer

2:31: 27 PM

Representative Quttenberg asked if the well | ease
expenditure credit had been used. M. Dees replied that the
credit went into effect July 1, 2010. He stated that the
departnment received a few applications for the credit. The
conpanies are required to provide their yearend true-up
filings with the departnent on March 31, 2011

Representative Quttenberg stated that the purposes for the
credits and |ease expenditures were to encourage the
industry to produce, but the credits were for required
activities.

2:33:56 PM

M. Dees continued with the presentation with slide 15:
"Types of Production Tax Credits,"

Cook Inlet Jack-Up Rig Credit - 43.55.025(1)

O Credit of 100% 90% 80% of up to $25 mllion
each of exploration expenditures for first 3
unaffiliated persons drilling wells wusing
the same jack up rig penetrating and
eval uating prospects in the pre-Tertiary
zone.

O Taxpayer obtaining credit may not claim .023
credit for sane expenditures

O 50% of credit to be repaid over 10 year
period if well yields sustained production

2:35:16 PM

Representative Neuman queried the effective date of March
31, 2010, and wondered if there was an application
deadline. M. Dees replied that he was not aware of a
deadl i ne.

Representati ve Neuman asked about a specific deadline for
the drilling of the wells. M. Dees stated that he was not
aware of a specific deadline in the statute.

Representative Neuman wondered about protection for the
state when various wells are operating under one corporate

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



unbrella. M. Tangeman stated that the question was better
suited for the Departnment of Law (DOL). He stated that the

deadline applied only for the first wel | drilled.
Representative Neuman wondered if wells were considered
separate if they came off a lateral line from the main
well. M. Dees was unsure.

2:37:27 PM

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked if repaynent of 50 percent of
the credit over ten years calculated $25 nillion for the
first person on the scene. M. Dees replied that if the
wel |l was successful and sustained commercial production,
then the repaynment would be 50 percent of the $25 nmillion
for the first well. The second well is eligible for $22.5
mllion.

2:38: 35 PM

M. Dees discussed Slide 17: "Credits Applied Against
Production Tax Liability,"

Cook Inlet Jack-Up Rig Credit - 43.55.025(1)

O Credit of 100% 90% 80% of up to $25 nmillion
each of exploration expenditures for first 3
unaffiliated persons drilling wells using
the same jack up rig penetrating and
eval uating prospects in the pre-Tertiary
zone.

O Taxpayer obtaining credit may not claim .023
credit for same expenditures

O 50% of credit to be repaid over 10 vyear
period if well yields sustained production

2: 39: 37 PM

M. Dees displayed Slide 18: "Production Tax Credits
Applied Against Tax Liability (Fiscal Year)." He explained
t hat t hat when the taxpayer performs its nonthly
install ment or annual tax filing, they w thhold the anpunt
of the credit taken. The deduction conmes from the anount
paid to the state. The table illustrates the type of
credits seen on sone tax filings.

2:42: 04 PM

M. Dees discussed Slide 109: "Production Tax Credits
Appl i ed Against Tax Liability."

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



Representative Gara pointed out Slide 18, and queried the
TIE credit. The credit was for the prior year's
investnments. He remarked that by renoving the TIE credits,
capital credits have raised every year since 2008. M. Dees
agreed with Representative Gara's assessnent.

2:44:17 PM

Representative Quttenberg queried the exploration credits

and the percentage of expenditures for the anmount in the
years represented. He wshed to assess the anmount of
exploration. He remarked on seismc research in Al aska. He
requested further conversations with DNR regarding the
anmount of exploration and the representative credits.

2:45: 38 PM

M. Dees continued with Slide 21: "Tineline for processing
of Transferable Credit under AS 43.55.023 (a)." He
expl ai ned that the explorers who apply for t hose
certificates undertake the illustrated tineline. Under the
est abl i shed regul ati ons, t axpayers can apply for

certificates on a quarterly basis. The graph exhibits the
timeframe that DOR has to conplete the process and deliver
the credits. The departnment has 120 days after March 31st
following the year that the expenditures were incurred to
either grant or deny the tax «credit. The departnent
endeavors to hurry the process further than the statute
mandates. Once the taxpayer receives their transferable tax
certificate, they are able to apply for cash. Typically,
fromthe tine that an expenditure is nmade to the tinme that
cash is applied for is 18 nonths.

2:48: 47 PM

Representative GQuttenberg wondered if the tineline is
shortened with the expertise and efficiency of the nmaster
auditors. M. Dees responded that the processes have been
streamlined with additional auditors. He noted that a
department group was <created to address tax credit
applications. He pointed out that audit work is currently
performed up-front, but the statutes allow audit rights at
any time. A due diligence review is performed follow ng the
application pr ocess. Certain i nformation of t he
expenditures is requested. He noted that the formal audit
process cones | ater

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



Representative GQuttenberg asked again about the 2006
audits. He wondered if audits would be perforned faster in
the future.

M. Dees responded that a tax «credit application is
different than a filing. He noted that tax filings are for
producers that pay the tax liability and perform the true
up. The tax credit applications exist for those taxpayers
without a tax liability. He noted the right to audit after
the fact, but in nobst cases, the due diligence review is
sufficient.

2:52: 20 PM

Representative Neuman asked if a tinme I|limt for the
nmenti oned | ook-back period was applicable. M. Dees replied
that the assessnent period for a tax filing is six years.
He explained that the tax is calculated on the cal endar
year and by March 31 of the following year will provide the
true-up cal cul ation

Representative Neuman asked if wunpaid taxis require an
interest paynent. M. Dees replied that the departnent uses
the federal short termnonthly interest rates.

Representative Gara commented on the gross tax, which was
deened nore reliable and required less auditing. He
recalled that sufficient auditors were not available to
ensure accurate paynents for the taxes owed. He asked the
department's opinion about the amount of auditors. M.
Tangeman stated that the audit master positions helped a
great deal. He noted that 2006 was the first audit that
included a net tax. He believed that the current anmount of
auditors was sufficient.

2:57: 05 PM

Representative Costello asked the result of the audits. M.
Tangeman responded that confidentiality issues conpronise
his ability to disclose the information

M. Tangenman conmented on areas that will be contested due
to varying interpretations of the statute.

M. Dees detailed Slide 22: "Tineline for processing a
Transferable Tax Credit Certificate under AS 43.55.023(b)."

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



He stated that the |oss can only be interpreted at the end
of the cal endar year.

M. Dees discussed Slide 23: "Tineline for Application for
AS 43.55.025 Alternative Credit for al and Gas
Expl oration.” He explained that the taxpayer/producer has
six nmonths to file for the credit follow ng conpletion of

the project. If a taxpayer has a tax liability, and they
are submtting a claim they are allowed to offset the
claim against the liability. Adjustnments in the eventual

anount of the credit through audit |ead to assessnent of
t he difference.

3:00: 59 PM

M. Dees discussed Slide 24: "Transferable Tax Credit
Certificates"

Conmpani es may also claimtax credits by applying for a
Transferable Tax Credit Certificate (TTCC)

O Available to conpanies (explorers) wth no
tax liability to which <credits can be
appl i ed

O Tax Credit Certificates under 43.55.023(a)
and (b) must be split or applied over two
years (except credits I ssued for
expenditures incurred south of 68 degrees
North latitude effective July 1, 2010)

O May be transferred to another taxpayer or
cashed with the state

M. Dees discussed Slide 25: "Production Tax Credits Under
AS 43.55 Cained by FY ($M." The graph illustrates
activity witnessed since the inception of the credits.

Representative Guttenberg asked if the category titled pre-
2007 included all activity prior to 2007. M. Dees
responded yes.

Representative WIlson asked if the legislature could
ascertain the effectiveness of specific «credits. M.
Tangeman thought it inpossible to tie barrels of oi
produced to a «certain tax «credit. He believed that
confidentiality issues would prevent the gleaning of the
requested information.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



Representative WIson wished to ascertain the effectiveness
of certain tax credits. M. Tangenan responded that a
decline curve would be difficult to enploy in deducing
barrel s of oil produced.

3:06:14 PM

Representative Neuman asked if the years illustrated were
fiscal years or calendar years. M. Tangenman responded
fiscal years.

Representati ve Neuman asked about the story told by the
data about successful investnents in Al aska. M. Tangeman
responded that tax <credits are applied for and used.
Activity occurred for tax credit applications. He believed
that DNR could provide additional information regarding
production. He clained that DOR can show how much of the
credit systemis used. The results of the credit system are
not the specialty of DOR

Representative Gara commented on the net operating |oss
credit. He asked about the nobney spent on the operating
| oss credits and whether the wells becanme productive. M.
Tangeman offered to research the question and report to the
conmittee.

3:08:37 PM

Co-Chair Thomas asked if a tax break for royalties m ght
sinplify the process for the oil industry. M. Tangeman
stated that the tax credits are observed during the current
nmeeting, but the producers mght speak to the needs of the
i ndustry.

3:10:45 PM

Representative Gara comented that DOR reported recently
t hat capi tal credit applications were worKking. The
governor's proposal clainms that the current system is not
effective. He stated that he was provided with various
answers fromthe departnent.

M. Tangenman stated that the systemitself is working. The
industry is taking advantage of the credits offered.
Capital investnment was up. The individual successes are
difficult to discern. He stated that the credits and tax
rates are an inportant equation.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



Representative GQGuttenberg added that the state w shes to
see an increase in exploration. He wondered if the credits
were effective in increasing production. He asked where the
revenue forecast indicated that the «credits have the
desired effect. M. Tangeman responded that the system is
working for the department. He was not prepared to discuss
the results. He stated that he would discuss results when
t he governor's bill was presented.

3:16:13 PM

Co-Chair Thomas commented on the increased use of tax
credits.

M. Tangenman stated that he relies on the industry to
provide information about their plans. The credit estinates
are based on industry testinony.

M. Dees added that Slide 25 depicted infornmation received
t hrough January 4, 2011. He expected to receive nore
appl i cations.

M. Dees introduced Slide 26: "Transferable Tax Credit
Certificates.” He commented that the chart was a graphica
depiction of the previous slide.

M. Dees discussed Slide 27: "Transferable Tax Credit
Certificate Activity by Fiscal Year ($M. He expl ai ned that
the slide depicts the dollar value issued each fiscal year,
t he anount refunded, and the anount transferred or applied
to taxes. As of February 4, 2011, the state had
approximately $73 million worth of transferable tax credit
certificates outstanding and available to be submtted for
cash.

Representative GQuttenberg asked if the fiscal year basis is
consi stent throughout industry and the departnents.

3:19: 56 PM

M. Dees replied that nopst taxpayers operate on a cal endar
year basis. The state's basis is converted to the fiscal
year. He noted that the refunded anmbunts tie to the anount
paid in fiscal years. Wth the elimnation of the 24 nonth
rei nvest ment peri od, the state encountered increased
activity in the processing the clains for cash refunds of
the credit certificates. The projection is for a $430

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



mllion inpact of production tax credits. He added that the
departnment uses the fiscal year to interpret information
vi ewed on other state financial statenents.

M. Dees discussed Slide 29: "Cash Refunds History,"

Cash Refunds Governed by AS 43.55. 028:
* To cash nust be usable against tax liability
» Mist show subsequent (24 nonths) QCEs or |ease bids
equal to cash sought (repealed in 2010)
e Have a zero tax owed in current and past years
e Have no nore than 50,000 BOE/ d

3:23:41 PM

M. Dees discussed Slide 30: "Cash Refunds Hi story." The
slide illustrated the tax credits purchased by fiscal year
from 2007 through 2/4/11.

M. Dees discussed Slide 31: "Cash Refunds Hi story." The
slide provides an overview of the oil and gas tax credit
fund. The current balance of the fund is $75 mllion.

Representative GQuttenberg wondered what would occur if
further appropriations were not nade. M. Dees responded
that the statute reads that the state would refund tax
credits as the appropriations are avail abl e.

3:25:37 PM

M. Dees illustrated Slide 32: "lInpact of Production Tax
Credits Total State Stinmulus.” He explained that the slide
depicts the total inpact of the stinmulus since the

i nception of PPT on a fiscal year basis.

M. Dees introduced Slide 33: "Capital Expenditures by Year
($M."

Representative Doogan referred to Slide 31 and understood
t hat the industry spent $2.7 billion in capital
expenditures and $900 nmillion was then refunded by the
state. He deduced that the state covers one third of the
costs with the oil industry responsible for two thirds of
the costs. M. Dees pointed out the lag time for the
transferrable tax credit certificates. Expenditures that
gave rise to the credits occurred in earlier periods. He
di d not recomend the conpari son.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



3:29:31 PM

Representative Doogan asked if the nunbers presented
represent a one third, two third conparison. M. Dees
concurred.

Representati ve Neuman asked about credits sold from one
conpany to another. He wondered about the average price for
of the credits. M. Dees replied that he was unaware of the
average price because the transaction is between two
private conpanies. The state honors the certificate at full
val ue. M. Tangeman added that the change in the |aw states
that a conpany is not required to hold the certificate for
a full 24 nonths and then reinvest the like amunt. The
certificates can be turned in for cash imediately, thus
elimnating the market.

3:32: 00 PM

#
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:32 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 02/10/11 1:41 P. M



